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TOL GASES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1.

INTRODUCTION

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 which disclose the state of affairs of TOL Gases
Limited as at that date. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors as indicated on
the statement of financial position.

INCORPORATION

TOL Gases Limited is incorporated in Tanzania under Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 as
a public Company limited by shares.

COMPANY'S VISION

To be the pride of Tanzania in Eastern, Central and Southern African markets for gases,
complementing accessories and services.

COMPANY'S MISSION

To be the leading, safest and reliable supplier of high-quality gases, complementing
accessories and services in Eastern, Central and Southern Africa.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is production and distribution of industrial gases,
medical gases, and related accessories.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who served the Company since 1 January 2021 and up to the date of this
report are:

Name Position Gender Age Nationality Appointment
(years)

Mr. Michael Shirima Chairman Male 78 Tanzanian 28 April 2014
Mr. Simon Mponji Director Male 78 Tanzanian 28 April 2014
Mr. Justin Massawe Director Male 41 Tanzanian 28 April 2014
Mr. Selestine Some Director Male 46 Tanzanian 1 April 2019
Prof Abraham Temu Director Male 63 Tanzanian 24 August 2018
Eng. Joseph Machange Director Male 71 Tanzanian 24 August 2018
Mr. Leonard K. Chacha Director Male 52 Tanzanian 27 August 2021

All Directors were non-executive. The Company secretary during the year ended 31
December 2021 was David Mchangilla.

BOARD COMMITEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name Position Age Nationality
Mr. Simon Mponii Chairman 78 Tanzanian
Prof Abraham Temu Member 63 Tanzanian
Eng. Joseph Machange Member 71 Tanzanian
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7.

BOARD COMMITEES (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT COMMITEE

Name Position Age Nationality
Mr. Justine Massawe Chairman 41 Tanzanian
Mr. Selestine Some Member 46 Tanzanian
Prof Abraham Temu Member 63 Tanzanian

There were two investment committee meeting held during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The directors are each entitled to the director’s fees paid annually as follows:

1Z8
Chairman of the Board 9,411,765
Other directors 7,058,824

The directors are each also entitled to sitting aliowance for every meeting of the Board or
its committees as follows:

TZS
Chairman of the Board 800,000
Other directors 600,000

SHAREHOLDING

The total number of shares issued at the end of the year 2021 was 57,505,963 (2020:
57,505,963).

Shareholder Number of %
shares
M/S Erncon Holding Limited 8,017,389 13.94
Ernest Saronga Massawe 6,908,764 12.01
Goodison Fourthy Seven Limited 6,482,217 11.27
Treasury Registrar 3,670,457 6.21
Anorld B.S. Kilewo 3,264,144 5.68
Godfrey Urasa 2,618,030 4,55
Harold Temu 2,507,740 4.36
Michael Shirima 1,680,405 2.92
Lake Chala Safari Lodge 1,430,067 2.49
William M. Lyakurwa 1,099,608 1.91
Public Service Social Security Fund 1,083,333 1.88
Joseph C. N. Machange 1,029,584 1.79
Sayed H. Kadri & others 1,015,509 1.77
Justine Massawe 400,100 0.70
Simon Mponji 44,851 0.08
Prof. Abraham K. Temu 10,075 0.01
Leonard Chacha Kitoka 200 0.0
Others 16,343,490 28.42
TOTAL 57,505,963 100.00
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10.

1.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company'’s capital structure for the year under review is shown below:

Authorised Share Capital

60 million ordinary shares of TZS 100 (Tanzanian Shilling one hundred each).

Called up and fully paid share capital

57,505,963 ordinary shares of TZS 100 each (2020: 57,505,963 ordinary shares).
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct

TOL Gases Limited is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance and the
Board is of the opinion that the Company currently complies with principles of good
corporate governance. For better corporate governance the Board has Audit and
Investment committees. Audit committee deals with Audit, Finance, Planning and
Administration, while the Investment committee deals with Investments.

The Board of Directors

The Board of TOL Gases Limited consists of seven Directors. None of the Directors hold
executive positions in the Company. The Board takes overall responsibility for the
Company, including responsibility for identifying key risk areas, considering, and monitoring
investment decisions, considering significant financial matters and reviewing the
performance of management against budgets and business plans. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive system of internal control policies and
procedures is operative for compliance with sound corporate governance principles. The
Board is chaired by a Director who has no executive functions. The Board is confident that
its members have the knowledge, talent and experience to lead the Company. The Non-
Executive Directors are independent of management and exercise their independent
judgment. With their depth of experience, they add value to Board deliberations.

The Board is required to meet at least four times a year and oversee management of the
business. Although the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is designated as Managing
Director, he is not a member of the Board of Directors. He reports to the Board and enjoys
all executive powers. He is assisted by senior management in the day to day operations of
the Company. The Managing Director and other Senior Managers are invited to attend
Board meetings and meetings of the committees of the Board which facilitate the effective
control of all the Company’s operational activities, acting as a medium of communication
and coordination between the various business units. Senior management meets on a
regular basis to review the results, operations, key financial indicators and the business

strategy of the Company. Board meetings are held quarterly to deliberate the results of the
Company.
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11.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Performance evaluation and reward

Details of the remuneration paid to key management are disclosed in Note 28 to the financial
statements. The Company benchmarks its reward system with prevailing going rate in the
labour market to ensure that it is able to recruit and retain the best available talent. A bonus
scheme is in place to ensure collective and individual contribution towards the success of
the Company is recognised and rewarded.

The Board accepts final responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company. Itis the task of management to ensure that adequate internal financial and
operational control systems are developed and maintained on an ongoing basis in order to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in:

The safeguarding of the Company’s assets (including information).

Compliance with the applicable laws, regulations, and supervisory requirements.
The reliability of the accounting records.

Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions; and,
Responsible behaviour towards all stakeholders.

The Board assessed the internal control systems throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2021 and is of the opinion that they met acceptable criteria.

Ethical behaviour

Compliance with the Code of Conduct is the ultimate responsibility of the Managing Director
with day-to-day monitoring delegated to line management with the support of personnel
officers. All staff are expected to maintain the highest level of integrity and honesty in dealing
with customers, suppliers, service providers and colleagues.

The Company’s Code of Conduct commits it to the highest standards of integrity, conduct
and ethics in its dealings with all parties concerned, including its directors, managers,
employees, customers, suppliers, competitors, investors, shareholders, and the general
public. The Directors and staff are expected to fulfil their ethical obligations in such a way
that the business is run strictly according to fair commercial competitive practices.

Financial reporting and auditing

The Directors accept final responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial
statements which give true and fair view of:

. The financial position of the Company as at the end of the year under review.
. The financial results of operations; and
. The cash flows for that year.

The responsibility for compiling the annual financial statements is vested in the
management and the financial audit was carried out independently by an external auditor
and the Company complied with the Companies Act, 2002 and other laws of Tanzania.
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11.

12.

13.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The external auditor of the Company report on whether or not the annual financial

statements give true and fair view. The Directors are satisfied that during the year under
review:

J adequate accounting records were maintained.
. an effective system of internal control and risk management, monitored by
management, was maintained.

) appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates, were used consistently; and

. the financial statements were compiled with in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act,
2002.

The Directors are also satisfied that no material event has occurred between the financial
year-end and the date of this report which affects the business or has not been reported.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has sufficient resources and
commitments at its disposal to operate the business in the foreseeable future. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

MANAGEMENT

The Management of the Company is led by the Managing Director and is organized in the
following functions:

Finance

Production and Engineering

Sales, Marketing and Business Development
Human Resources and Administration

e & o @

The key management personnel who served the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 were:

Name Position

Mr. Daniel Warungu Managing Director

Mr. John Mbiri Director of Production and Engineering

Mrs. Juliana Mrikaria Director of Human Resource and Administration

Mr. Evarist Tilafu Finance Director

Eng. Daudi Miwale Director of Sales, Marketing and Business Development

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
Macro and micro economic overview

The operating environment remained stable amidst the turbulent dynamics of the year. The
impact of COVID-19 strained some sectors in the economy however for the Company there
was no notable business disruption as COVID-19 raised a demand for medical oxygen. The
Company was proudly able to supply medical oxygen cylinders and other medical
equipment’s to the government of Tanzania through the Ministry of Health. The macro-
economic variables remained relatively stable during the year under review.
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13.

14.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Competitive position

The Company has made significant strides towards recovering its regional market share in
carbon dioxide market following capacity enhancement and renewal of distribution fleet.
Besides domestic market the Company has been supporting customers in other SADC
countries of Malawi and Zambia and DRC. While competition is expected to increase in

these markets following other new entrants, TOL is well positioned to capitalise also on the
expected growth in the beverage sector in the region.

RESOURCES REQUIREMENTS

The Company creates value to stakeholders through a combination of different resources
such as financial, human, manufactured, social and relationship, natural and other

resources. The Company applies a combination of all the resources without disregarding
the other to maximize value in the longer term.

Financial resources

Financial resources are deployed to finance the operations of the Company for both working
capital expenditure requirements. It includes shareholder equity, retained earnings and
external borrowings among others. The shareholder and debt funding give us a strong
financial capital base that supports our operations and business growth.

During the year under review, our total equity grew from TZS 22.9 billion to TZS 24.3 billion
while the total borrowings also grew to TZS 14.475 billion from TZS 8.2 billion in 2020.

increment on the borrowing was for financing additional investment on the new Carbon
dioxide plant.

Human resources

Success is delivered through a purpose-driven, Execution and Delivery Culture. Our people
are at the centre of our success. TOL Gases Limited will focus on employee development
and leadership training to build a long sustainable competitive advantage. This would
involve identifying the talents existing with TOL Gases Limited and provide them with the
skills and leadership qualities that would enable them to excel in their performance. Focus
to this would be performance driven rewards and compensation plan that would make staff
and managers part of the delivery of the business plan.

Social and Relationship resources

Key stakeholders are continuously engaged in striving create value to our shareholders and
meet their expectations. The views of our stakeholders are taken with great attention as
they play a significant role in shaping our response to business and society issues. Be it
with our customers, suppliers, government regulatory agencies and the surrounding
communities, a holistic approach is taken to sustainable value creation by nurturing our
long-standing relationships and building new ones.

Natural resources
The natural resources like carbon dioxide is mined in Mbeya. The right technical know-how
is required and the government support to TOL Gases Limited in its efforts to raise the

required financing and operate its mining licences without major disruptions from the local
community in Mbeya.

Other resource

In production of the products the Company requires, modern and reliable plants. The
Company has modern plants for carbon dioxide which is less than 10 years and new Air
Separation plant which was commissioned during the year under review.
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15. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is committed to deliver stakeholders’ expectations by mitigating risks which
affect the Company’s operations through a well-established risk management framework.
Management believes the following risks may significantly impact the Company:

Significant element of TOL Gases
Limited revenue is in TZS while
suppliers of capital goods and raw
materials demand payment in
foreign currency.

Principal Risk | Context Opportunities and Mitigations
v' Tanzania has sustained relatively | v Continuously keep in touch
Political & high growth in economy this year, with Government to monitor
Economic bolstered by strengthened private the situation.
consumption and recovered exports | ¥ TOL Gases Limited will
as global restrictions has been ensure it complies with all
eased. GDP grew by 5.5% in 2021 licences requirements and
supported by the large infrastructure regularly report that to the
spending Board of Directors
v' While there is no doubt about| v Carryout Corporate Social
Government's  commitment to Responsibilities in the Local
macroeconomic stability, this may Community to  improve
be sliding. relationship and obtain buy
v' There is no history of high in.
incidences of natural disasters such
as earthquakes, flooding efc in the
country, which might have a
significant impact on our key
network elements.
v" Mining Licenses infringement by the
local community and leaders
Currency v The shilling is very vulnerable to any | v Foreign currency accounts
fenewed dollar. strengths. T'hlS are maintained.
1%?; Ztntic;?s medium term inflation | Use qfforward contrgcts and
v ) hedging where practicable to

minimise foreign currency

exposure.
Borrow in TZS to cover
operations and

recapitalization.

Regulatory & v
Legal

Refers to current or prospective risk
to earnings and capital arising from
violations or non-compliance with
laws, rules, regulations,
agreements, prescribed practices,
or ethical standards, as well as from
the possibility of  incorrect
interpretation of effective laws or
regulations.

The Company secretary ensures
compliance and mitigation of any
risk through regular review and
update to management on a
regularly basis,

Market v
competition

The industrial gases and medical
gases continue to face competition
from other players, including some
customers like government
hospitals constructing their own
medical oxygen plants.

The Company continues recover

its regional

market share in

carbon dioxide market following

capacity

enhancement and

renewal of distribution fleet. The

new
maintained

oxygen
the

plant has
Company's

market position as a reliable
supplier of preference.
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16. COMPANY'’S KEY STRENGTHS

On pursuit of our objectives, the key strengths, and resources (both intangible and tangible)
available to the Company are:

Competent Management and Personnel

The most important singular resource of the Company is its human capital. Competent and
qualified management team who drive the day-to-day activities to achieve the Company’s
objectives and manages the Company’s operations. Committed and skilled employees who
are well experienced in cryogenic technology and industry support the management team.
The Company employs qualified and competent personnel and invests in their training

Strong Brand and Quality Products
TOL Gases is a well-known producer of atmospheric gases in the market and synonymous

of high quality. The brand and quality of the Company’s products give the Company
competitive advantage in the market.

Strong Distribution Network

With well-defined, diversified distribution network and the fleet of trucks owned by the
Company, our products reach to the customers conveniently. The Company also exports
its products to various countries in the Central and Eastern Africa Sub-Region.

17. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP
The Company maintains good business and cordial relationship through consistent
engagement with key stakeholders who are the central to the business sustainability, both
in terms of understanding the key stakeholders needs and interests in delivering the
Company’s objectives and respond on concerns through decisions, actions, and
performance as well as on going communication with our stakeholders. Set out below are

the key stakeholders with whom the Company engages on a regular basis and the means
of engagement.

Stakeholders | Management of stakeholder’s relationship

Employees Good relationship with Employees is always maintained.

Employee engagement activities like staff meetings and departmental
meetings have continued to be conducted as a move to ensure that
employees are abreast with Company’s directions. Development of
leadership and skilled work force that is self-motivated and adequately
compensated to support the business plan.

Customers Developing and manage the customers channel and relationship to

ensure customers’ loyalty and maintain acceptable customers
switching rate (Churn rate). Selective marketing program directed to
selected market segments that TOL Gases Limited has chosen to

obtain required organic growth and values. Ensuring product quality,
availability, and reliability.

Suppliers Proper management of suppliers’ chain and relationship to ensure we

obtain goods and services at the most competitive prices and where
practical, maximise credit opportunity. Competitive procurement of
goods and supplies is always exercised, and fairness is of utmost

Importance while awarding supply contract to selected service
providers.

Trade unions [Continuous engagement with the relevant employee unions (TUICO)
and industrial labour organizations to ensure that ongomg constructive
relationships with these stakeholders are maintained.
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17. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP (CONTINUED)

18.

Stakeholders EManagement of stakeholder’s relationship

Shareholders/ Keep the dividend pay-out at a level that allows recapitalisation of profits
Investors in the business for the future growth of the Company. Annual General

Meeting (AGM) is held on a yearly basis. The annual report is presented
at the AGM to shareholders.

authorities Dar es Salaam_Stock Exchange (DSE), Mining Commission and

Regulatory Regular communication with the Capital Markets and Securities Authority,

interaction with Tanzania Revenue Authority in respect of TOL's tax
commitments, as appropriate.

Government Regularinteractions through Government Treasury Register

Community Collaboration with related entities concerning CSR to foster responsible

initiatives and disseminate best practices.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The Company managed to procure a brand-new Air Separation Unit to replace the aged
and oversized Aspen 1000 plant during the year. Installation and commissioning of this new
plant was completed in July 2021. This move will save the Company considerable amount
of cost, improve the Company’'s cash position but most importantly will end the perennial
lack of reliability of supplies for oxygen and nitrogen gases in the Tanzanian market as well
as the neighbouring countries. The Company will embark on revitalising its route to the
market for the industrial gases now that the supplies are assured with own operated
customer centres in the major cities in Tanzania.

Additionally, the Company is in the process of doubling its carbon dioxide production
capacity as well as distribution capacity during the year 2021. This follows the rise in
demand for carbon dioxide within the country as well as from the neighbouring Southern
African Development Community (SADC) countries to cope with the rising demand. Key to
the Company’s confidence in making these investments is the increasing number of blue-
chip bottling and brewing companies expressing their willingness to enter into a long-term
commitment with TOL for the supply of food grade carbon dioxide.

Future outlook

The Company is expecting an increase in profitability following commissioning of the new
air separation plant. It is also expecting a recovery of dissolved acetylene demand
considering that oxygen will be reliably available. The Company is also expecting to resume
development of the Kenyan market for liquid nitrogen as well as liquid oxygen which will
ultimately increase profitability.

Additionally, alongside the investment in an additional production capacity for carbon
dioxide, The Company is investing in modernizing its fleet with additional new trucks as well
as tankers expected before June 2022. This will go a long way into reassuring customers

of TOL'’s reliability in delivering timely supplies as well as reduce cost and the Company’s
financial performance going forward.

10
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19.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

Directors use the key performance indicators both financial and non-financial, in assessing
the Company’s progress towards its objectives. These indicators are financial budgets,
production targets, improved cost management, sustainable environmental performance,
marketing innovation, human resources excellence and the corporate social responsibility
programmes. These key performance indicators are commercially sensitive and
consequently have not been reproduced here.

Financial results

Sales revenue increased by 25%, to TZS 24.85billion from TZS 19.82 billion in 2020. The
increase in revenue was mainly attributed by the medical equipment and oxygen cylinders
sold to the government of Tanzania and other private hospitals in the fight against COVID-
19 pandemic. EBITDA improved by 15% to TZS 7.6 billion from TZS 6.6 billion in 2020
driven by the increase in revenue and operational efficiencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company earned a profit before tax of TZS
4,478 million (2020: TZS 3,838 million), an increase of 17% from prior year.

The Company’s cash generated from trading activities improved by 15% from TZS 6.6 billion
recorded in 2020 to TZS 7.6 billion in 2021.The net cash flows from operations, and the
EBITDA performance, are testament that the Company’'s operational business
fundamentals and outlook continue to be positive. The Company continues to be committed

to its sales and operational efficiency as it seeks to continue enhancing value for its
stakeholders.

Financial position

Non-currents assets increased by 7% from TZS 26 billion to TZS 28 billion. The increase is
attributed to the acquisition of a new Air Separation plant. Decrease in intangible assets by
TZS 74 million is due to amortization charged during the year, there has been no additions.

Current assets increased by TZS 3.4 billion (25%) mainly attributed by TZS 923 million
being advance payment made in respect of supply of medical cylinders which will be
supplied to the government of Tanzania as the final part of their contract. Trade and other
receivables decreased by TZS 799 million resulted from vigorous collection from debtors.
Inventories decreased by TZS 459 million as reflected by the increase in the sales achieved
during the year. This means that whatever produced was sold. Majority of the inventory is
made up with the welding equipment. The cash and bank balance increased by TZS 3.7
billion reflecting the unutilized loan for the remained balance of the new CO2 plant.

Total current liabilities decreased by TZS 5.3 billion. Prior year current liabilities consisted
of bank overdraft of TZS 3 billion. However, due to improved cash flows, the Company had
not utilised its overdraft facility as at 31 December 2021.

Cashflow

The Company's major source of cash flow was from operating activities, which was

attributable by increase in revenue and improved collection efforts of amounts due from
debtors.

11
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19. REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

20.

21,

22,

23.

Cashflow (Continued)

The second source of cashflow was financing activities through a term loan facility of TZS
14.5 billion from Diamond Trust Bank which TZS 8.2 billion was used to pay off the facility
loans from CRDB bank and Absa bank the remained balance will be used to finance the
investment of the additional new carbon dioxide plant. Part of the funds generated in 2021

was mainly invested in the acquisition of non-current assets TZS 3.6 billion (2020: increase
of TZS 7.3 billion).

The Directors recommend payment of TZS 40 per share (2020: TZS 34.78) to shareholders
as final dividend. In making this proposal the directors have considered the financial

situation of the Company and its future needs for implementing replacement and
improvement projects.

SOLVENCY

The Board of Directors confirms that International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
have been followed and that the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis with a reasonable expectation that TOL Gases Limited has adequate
resources to continue its operational existence at least for the next twelve months from the
date of approval of these financial statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The annual financial statements are prepared on the underlying assumption of a going
concern. The Company's accounting policies are subject to an annual review to ensure
continuing compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

INVESTMENTS

The Company made investments in property, plant, and equipment to the value of TZS 3.6
billion during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: TZS 7 billion).

EMPLOYEES' WELFARE

Management and Employees' Relationship

A healthy relationship continues to exist between management and employees. There were
no unresolved complaints received by Management from the employees during the year.
The Company is an equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to employment
opportunities and ensures that the best available person is appointed to any given position,

free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to factors like gender, marital status,
tribe, religion or disability.

Training Facilities

The Company sponsors its employees for both short- and long-term courses within and

outside the country in various disciplines depending on the corporate needs and financial
resources available.

12
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23. EMPLOYEES' WELFARE (CONTINUED)

24,

Medical Assistance

The Company has medical insurance for permanent employees with their families.
Health and Safety

The Company has a strong health and safety awareness which ensures that a culture of
hygiene and safety prevails at all times. All employees and contractors are provided with
appropriate personal protective equipment, all of which meets the safety requirements laid
down under Occupational Health and Safety Act 2003 and other legisiation concerning
industrial safety, health and hygiene. The Company also organises regular health check-up
for its employees who confirm to the applicable statutes and regulations in Tanzania.

Persons with Disabilities

It remains the Company’s policy to accept disabled persons for employment for those
vacancies that they are able to fill. Opportunities for advancement are provided to each
disabled person when a suitable vacancy arises within the organisation and all necessary
assistance is given along with initial training. Where an employee becomes disabled during
the course of his or her employment, the Company provides suitable alternate employment
and necessary training thereof. The Company’s policy is not discriminatory against people
with regards to race, gender, religion or disability.

Financial Assistance to Staff

Loans are available to all permanent employees who are members of Savings and Credit
Co-Operative Society (SACCOS). The Company supports the staffs SACCOS by
managing the recoverability of the loan through payroll deductions.

Retirement Benefits

The Company makes contributions in respect of staff retirement benefits to a defined
statutory contribution plan, i.e. National Social Security Fund. The Company's obligations
in respect of these contributions are limited to 10% and 15% respectively of the employees’
gross salary, while the employees contribute 10% and 5% of their gross salary.

The Company’s employment terms are regularly reviewed to ensure they continue to meet
statutory compliance and market conditions. The Company communicates with its
employees through regular management and staff meetings and through circulars. The

Company has continued to maintain a conducive working environment in terms of providing
suitable workplace, offices, washrooms and canteen facilities.

GENDER PARITY

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to employment
opportunities and ensures that the best available person is appointed to any given position
free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to factors like gender, marital status,
tribes, religion and disability which does not impair ability to discharge duties. As at 31
December 2021 the Company has 84 male and 19 female employees.

13
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25.

26.

27,

28.

29.

30.

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions and balances are disclosed in Note 28 to these financial
statements.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company did not make political donations during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL PROGRAMME

The Company has an environment policy and takes appropriate pollution control measures
to comply with various environment and pollution related statutes in Tanzania.

QUALITY

The Company has a formal quality assurance accreditation program, with all operations
being monitored closely and the products are tested in the Company Laboratory, Airborne
Labs International USA as well as, Tanzania Bureau of Standards (TBS). The Company
has been certified with ISO 22000.

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT

During the year TOL Gases Limited continued to support Tanzanian society through its
Corporate Social Responsibility program. The Company participated in the construction of
two classrooms at Itagata secondary school in Rungwe district and one classroom at Mpata
primary school in Busekelo district.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Directors confirm that the directors’ report has been prepared in full compliance with
Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 the Report by Those Charged with
Governance and the Company complied with all relevant statutory legislations.

AUDITOR

The auditor, KPMG, has expressed their willingness to continue in office and are eligible for
re-appointment. A resolution proposing the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company for year 2022 will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

/Q‘ 2 mAY 2003

Mr. Simon Mponji Date
Director
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TOL GASES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Company'’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view of TOL Gases Limited (“the Company”), comprising the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2002.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records
and an effective system of risk management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as going
concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern at least for
the next twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2002.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements of TOL Gases Limited, as identified in the first paragraph, were
approved and authorised for issue by the Directors on .2 HQY ...2022.

Q R —

Mr. Simon Mponji Prof Abraham K Temu
Director Director

‘ o
Date: .31 MY 2022 Date: 31 MAY 2022
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TOL GASES LIMITED

DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the
Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995,
requires financial statements to be accompanied with a Statement of Declaration issued by the Head
of Finance responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a professional accountant to assist the Board of Directors to discharge the
responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view position of the
entity in accordance with international accounting standards and statutory reporting requirements.
Full legal responsibility for financial statements rests with the Board of Directors as under Directors’
Responsibilities’ statement on an earlier page.

|, Evarist Tilafu, being the Head of Finance of TOL Gases Limited hereby acknowledge my
responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting standards and statutory requirements.

| thus confirm that the financial statements comply with applicable accounting standards and
statutory requirements as on that date and that they have been prepared based on properly
maintained financial records.

Signed by: £vPRIST M: TILAFY £

Position: Head of Finance
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KPMG Telephone +255 22 2600330

Certified Public Accountants Fax +255 22 2600490

2nd Floor, The Luminary Email info@kpmg.co.tz

Haile Selassie Road, Masaki Internet www.kpmg.com/eastafrica
P O Box 1160

Dar es Salaam, Tanzania

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOL GASES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TOL Gases Limited (“the Company”) as set out
on pages 21 to 65, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of TOL Gases Limited as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2002.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Tanzania, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

KPMG is a registered partnership in Tanzania and a member ~ Partners Cgqu‘f“be

firm of the KPMG global organization of independent firms njala

affiliated with KPMG International Limited

("KPMG International”), a private English company 1 7
limited by guarantee.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOL GASES LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the TOL Gases Limited Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2002,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOL GASES LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Continued

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TOL GASES LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 we report to you, based on our audit that:

in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by TOL Gases Limited:;
e the individual accounts are in agreement with the accounting records of the Company;

e we obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, are necessary for the purposes of our audit;

o directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements; and

e information specified by the law regarding Directors’ emoluments and other transactions
with the Company is disclosed.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants (T)

. /——_"
’ °
®

Signed by Engagement Partner: CPA Alexander Njombe (ACPA 2714)
Dar es Salaam
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TOL GASES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Notes

Revenue 7
Cost of sales 8
Gross profit
Other income 9
Operating expenses 10
Trade receivables impairment release
Operating profit
Finance costs 11
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 22(a)
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per shares (TZS)

— Basic 26

— Diluted

The notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Report of the auditor — pages 17 to 20.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
24,849,905 19,816,325
(14,532,314) (11,372,996)
10,317,591 8,443,329
28,999 77,593
(4,877,395) (3,797,948)
- 30,997

5,469,195 4,753,971
(991,084) (916,032)
4,478,111 3,837,939
(1,183,480) (1,493,808)
3,294,631 2,344,131
3,294,631 2,344,131
57.29 40.76

57.29 40.76
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TOL GASES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
Notes TZS '000 TZS '000
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 26,927,827 25,391,918
Right-of-use assets 14 (b) 335,125 325,331
Intangible asset 15 296,478 370,875
Advances to suppliers 446,856 -
28,006,286 26,088,124
Current assets
Inventories 16 4,089,520 4,548,373
Trade and other receivables 17 5,019,850 5,818,230
Cash and bank balances 18 4,312,902 604,357
Asset held for sale 19 2,674,275 2,674,275
Advances to suppliers 923,077 -
17,019,624 13,645,235
TOTAL ASSETS 45,025,910 39,733,359
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 20 5,750,596 5,750,596
Share premium 6,762,049 6,762,049
Retained Earnings 11,757,384 10,462,810
24,270,029 22,975,455
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 21 (b) 11,927,120 3,806,949
Lease liabilities 14(a) 59,817 45,486
Deferred tax liability 22 (c) 3,387,620 2,257,024
15,374,557 6,109,459
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 2,115,619 1,869,927
Lease liabilities 14(a) 11,385 189
Tax payable 22(b) 208,976 867,563
Bank overdraft 24 - 3,014,454
Cylinder deposits 25 497,464 459,052
Current portion of loans 21 (@a&b) 2,547,880 4,437,260
5,381,324 10,648,445
Total liabilities 20,755,881 16,757,904
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 45,025,910 39,733,359

The financial statements 'onf 3es 21 to 65 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 31.1.C 7 022... and signed by:

Mr. Simon Mponiji Prof. Abraham K. Temu
Director Director

The notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Report of the auditor — pages 17 to 20.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

At 1 January 2020
Profit for the year

Transactions with the owners of
the Company

Dividends declared

Total transaction with the
owners of the Company

At 31 December 2020

1 January 2021
Profit for the year

Transactions with the owners of
the Company

Dividends declared

Total transaction with the
owners of the Company

At 31 December 2021

Share
capital
TZS '000

5,750,596

5,750,596
5,750,596

5,750,596

Share
premium
TZS '000

6,762,049

6,762,049

6,762,049

6,762,049

Retained
earnings
TZS '000

9,117,558
2,344,131

(998,879)

(998,879)
10,462,810
10,462,810

3,294,631

(2,000,057)
(2,000,057)

11,757,384

The notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Report of the auditor — pages 17 to 20.

Total
TZS '000

21,630,203
2,344,131

(998,879)

(998,879)
22,975,455
22,975,455

3,294,631

(2,000,057)

(2,000,057)

24,270,029
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TOL GASES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before tax

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Depreciation 13
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14(b)
Amortisation of intangibles 15
Interest expense on bank loan and overdraft 1"
Interest expense on lease liability

Impairment loss in trade receivables

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Movements in working capital

Change in inventories

Change in trade and other receivables
Change in cylinder deposits

Change in advances to suppliers

Change in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operating activities

Corporate tax paid 22
Interest paid — loan and bank overdraft
Interest paid — lease liability

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13
Purchase of intangibles

Net cash flows used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Loan 21
Repayment of borrowings 21
Dividend payment

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 14

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 18

The notes on pages 25 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Report of the auditor — pages 17 to 20.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
4,478,111 3,837,939
2,058,498 1,880,414
15,896 2,017
74,397 1,150
926,347 877,143
11,221 7,464

- (30,997)

. 29,830
7,564,470 6,604,960
458,853 747,890
762,695 (1,262,969)
38,412 (199,229)
(1,369,933) -
245,692 801,639
7,700,189 6,692,291
(675,786) (613,238)
(926,347) (877,143)
(11,221) (7,464)
6,086,835 5,194,446
(3,594,407) (7,049,018)
- (218,449)
(3,594,407) (7,267,467)
14,475,000 4,626,185
(8,244,209) (1,168,499)
(2,000,057) (985,173)
(163) (7,556)
4,230,571 2,464,957
6,722,999 391,936
(2,410,097) (2,802,033)
4,312,902 (2,410,097)




TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

- CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Tanzania under the Companies Act Cap.212 (Now Companies Act,
No. 12 of 2002).

The principal activity of the Company is production and distribution of industrial gases, medical
gases and related accessories.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2002. They were
authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where fair value
measurements have been applied.

The financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS) which is the Company's
functional currency. items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). These financial statements are presented in the Tanzanian shillings, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency rounded to the nearest Tanzanian million shillings,
unless otherwise indicated.

b) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a
going concern. This basis presumes that that the Company will continue in operation for at least
one year from the date of the audit report and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A number of other new standards listed below are also effective from 1 January 2021 but they do
not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

New currently effective standards/amendments
e COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)

* Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16)

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that
affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reporting amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
a) Judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies including estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements and significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

Taxes

Significant assumptions are required in determining the Company’s overall income tax provision.
There are many transactions and calculations, for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues, based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. When the final outcome of tax matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will have an impact on the current and any deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

Asset useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note
5 (c) of these financial statements are estimated annually and are in line with the rate at which they
are depreciated.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets
at each reporting date. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash

generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Going concern

Whether there are material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern as disclosed in Note 2 (b) of these financial statements.

Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivable

The Company estimates expected credit loss by assessing the loss that will be incurred given
customer default based on past payment experience and by assessing the probability of default
taking into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the country and

economic environment in which the customer operates. The estimate also incorporates forward
fooking data.

Lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Company, the Company evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Company to exercise the option.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
b) Judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies including estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements and significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

Taxes

Significant assumptions are required in determining the Company’s overall income tax provision.
There are many transactions and calculations, for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues, based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. When the final outcome of tax matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will have an impact on the current and any deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

Asset useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note
5 (c) of these financial statements are estimated annually and are in line with the rate at which they
are depreciated.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets
at each reporting date. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash

generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Going concern

Whether there are material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern as disclosed in Note 2 (b) of these financial statements.

Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivable

The Company estimates expected credit loss by assessing the loss that will be incurred given
customer default based on past payment experience and by assessing the probability of default
taking into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the country and

economic environment in which the customer operates. The estimate also incorporates forward
looking data.

Lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Company, the Company evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal

options taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Company to exercise the option.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

b) Determination and measurement of fair values (continued)

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Company’s control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term
would affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future years.

a) Determination and measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either, in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

Further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values are disclosed in the
notes specific to that asset or liability.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair value.
This includes a management team that monitors need for fair valuation and sources for experts
that will perform the valuation.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the input used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observed for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobserved
inputs)

If the input used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Fair
value disclosure is made in Note 30 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the year of operation.

a) Revenue recognition
Revenues from operations consist of revenue from sale of goods and services. Revenue represents

income arising in the course of an entity’s ordinary activities, which leads to an increase of economic
benefits during the accounting period.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The principal policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the year of operation.

a) Revenue recognition

Revenues from operations consist of revenue from sale of goods and services. Revenue represents

income arising in the course of an entity’s ordinary activities, which leads to an increase of economic
benefits during the accounting period.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer. Upon delivery of goods to the respective
customers, a delivery note is signed by both parties which serves as evidence of satisfaction of
performance obligation. The Company applied the portfolio approach in assessing the contracts.
Revenue is stated net of value-added tax (VAT).

The five-step model stipulated in IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers is applied when
accounting for revenue from contracts with customers. The Company accounts for a revenue
contract with a customer as follows:

e Identify the contract with a customer.

» Identify the performance obligation in the contract.

¢ Determine the transaction price.

* Allocate the transaction price to performance obligation in the contract.

* Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the equipment.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
warranties, customer loyalty points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the

customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

29



TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a) Revenue recognition (continued)

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,

only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the
accounting policies on financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

b) Interest and similar income and expenses

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income or expense is recorded
at the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Interest income (continued)

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

Foreign exchange gain and losses

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Company revises
its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the
original effective interest rate and the change in carrying amount is recorded as ‘other operating
income’.

Gain or loss on disposal of property plant and equipment

Gain or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognized within other operating (losses)/income in the profit and loss account.

c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the Company holds for its own use or for
rental to others and which are expected to be used for more than one year.

Recognition and measurement

ltems of equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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c) Property, plant, and equipment (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company, and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the working condition for its intended use and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Borrowing
costs related to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as incurred.

Subsequent cost

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to, major renovations or
replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the Company and the cost can be measured reliably and are depreciated over the remaining useful
life of the related asset or to the date of the next major renovation, whichever is sooner.

All other repairs and maintenance expenditure and day to day servicing costs are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by
management. Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each part of an item of equipment.

When parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

Description Rate (%)
Buildings 2
Plant and Machinery 5-10
Cylinders 4
Office Equipment 10-33
Motor Vehicles 20-25

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of
each reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. The depreciation charge for each year is
recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
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¢) Property, plant, and equipment (continued)

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use (qualifying assets) are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

e) Intangible asset

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprise the cost of acquired computer software and programmes. Expenditure
on acquired computer software and programmes is capitalised and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

f) Intangible asset

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprise the cost of acquired computer software and programmes. Expenditure
on acquired computer software and programmes is capitalised and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised

in profit or loss. Current intangible assets which comprise of computer software is amortised over
5 years.
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g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

Raw materials:
Cost is determined by weighted average cost basis.

Finished goods and work in progress:

Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

At every reporting date, the Company assesses potential provision for which obsolete items mainly
relate to materials or spares which have no further use due to obsolescence, technological changes
or other factors. Whenever there are indicators for obsolescence, the Company reflects the
respective adjustments in profit and loss.

h) Employees’ benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such

as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not
discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees
render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when
the absence occurs.

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plan

All of the Company'’s employees are members of the National Social Security Fund (“NSSF”), which
is a defined contribution plans. Law prescribes these plans. The Company and employees both
contribute 10% or the Company and employees contribute 15% and 5% of the permanent and
pensionable employees’ basic salaries to the scheme, respectively. The Company also contributes
10% of non-permanent and pensionable employees’ gross salary towards NSSF. The contribution
is charged to the profit or loss account when incurred.

Terminal benefits

Terminal benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange of
these benefits. The Company recognizes terminal benefits when it is constructive obliged to either
terminate the employment formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide terminal
benefits because of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
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i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks, cash on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at
amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’'s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-
generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized

in the profit and loss account in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior

years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit and loss account.
k) Taxes

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCI.
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k) Taxes (continued)
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. The current rate of corporate tax is 30%.

Current tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for

» temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences related to investments in associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient
to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the Company. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences

when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

Deferred tax

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner

in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
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k) Taxes (continued)

Value added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized at amounts net of value added tax except where
the value added tax is incurred on a purchase of an asset or service is not recoverable from the
taxation authority in which case the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or part of the expense item as applicable.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included
as part of the receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Capital gain taxes

Capital gain taxes arising as result of a change in control at the ultimate Parent Company level are
recognized as tax liabilities in Company’s books as other payables to revenue Authorities and other
receivable from the parent Company.

Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the impact
of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment
relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events.
New information may become available that causes the Company to change its judgment regarding
the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the
period that such a determination is made.

1)  Financial instruments

i.  Recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A

trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortised cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment); or fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets

are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.
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1) Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at

FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets:

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed:;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
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1) Financial instruments (continued)

ii.  Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets - Business model assessment (continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are

not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual

cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual
paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may
also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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I) Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL ~ These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income. are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

amortised cost the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method. foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OC| are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

FVOCI are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii.  Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

An ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost,
contract assets and debt investments at FVOC!, but not to investments in equity instruments.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive.

Loss allowances for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime

ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
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1) Financial instruments (continued)

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum
payment period of 30 days for credit customers. The Company considers reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment. Example of micro economic factors
considered include changes in inflation rate, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) rate and interest rates.

The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognised accordance with the requirement of IFRS 9.

iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or
- ittransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred;
or
- the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished

and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

v. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to

set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously

40



TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

m) Intangible assets

i Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets, including customer relationships, patents and trademarks, that are acquired by
the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

ii, Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

ili.  Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortised.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

n) Cylinder deposits

Compressed gases must be contained in the Company’s cylinders which are specifically made to
accommodate the required pressure of 200 bars depending on the different types of gases.
Cylinders are treated as non-current assets which are given to customers with the product who in
- turn pay a refundable deposit equivalent to the prevailing market value of each cylinder. Amount
paid by a customer as security deposit for the cylinders is refundable upon return of the cylinder.

o) Foreign currency translation

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Tanzanian Shillings (TZS), which is also the
Company'’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the spot rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All

differences arising from settlement and translation of monetary items are recognised in other
income in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the date of the initial recognition. Non-monetary items

measured at fair vaiue in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.
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p) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the

right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS
16.

i. Leases in which the Company is a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate

non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Company recognises a right of use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right of use of asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying

asset or restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right of use asset
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis
as those of the property and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be

readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determined its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period of the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of lease unless the
Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
p) Leases (continued)

i. Leases in which the Company is a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable, under
a residual guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right of use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right of use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right of use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property

in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial
position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low
value assets and short term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

COVID-19-related rent concessions

The Company has applied COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions — Amendment to IFRS 16. The
Company applies the practical expedient allowing it not to assess whether eligible rent concessions
that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications. The Company
applies the practical expedient consistently to contracts with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances. For rent concessions in leases to which the Company chooses not to apply the

practical expedient, or that do not qualify for the practical expedient, the Company assesses
whether there is a lease modification.

ii. Leases in which the Company is a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company

allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease the lease
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset.
If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lese; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of
this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the
major part of the economic life of the asset.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
q) Share capital and equity

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Any premium received over and above
the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity as deduction from the proceeds.

r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost.

s) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: The Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease

termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognized as interest expense.

t) Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated into Tanzanian Shillings at rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in profit and loss within ‘other operating income’ or ‘other
operating expenses’.

u) Comparative figures

Where necessary, prior year comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to presentation
in the current year.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
v) Dividend distribution

It is the Company's policy to pay 50% of its profit for the year as dividends to its shareholders
subject to declaration by the directors and approval. Final dividends distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's balance sheet in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's Board of Directors. Dividends are subject to a
withholding tax of 5%. The directors resolved to declare and pay dividend of TZS 2 billion for 2021

(2020: TZS 1 billion). Divided paid is ciassified under financing activities in the statement of cash
flows.

w) Basic and Diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company (after deducting interest on the convertible non-cumulative
redeemable preferences shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

x) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-

sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill,
and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated
to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property
or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's other
accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for-
distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer
amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

y) Cylinder deposits
Cylinder deposits are amounts paid by customers as a security against gas cylinders provided to

them. They are refundable upon safe return of cylinders. Therefore, a liability is recognised when
a customer pays a deposit.

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTING

The Company’s revenue is derived from sale of goods (as disclosed in note 7) and the Board of
Directors relies primarily on revenue from sale of goods to assess performance. The revenue from
external parties reported to the Board of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Management monitors the
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment for each department. Assessment for each
department is done by analysing expenditures incurred compared to approved budget. Day to day

decision making and implementation of the budget is done by management executives through
monthly meetings.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Industrial gases 20,884,562 19,101,155
Accessories 3,851,045 383,946
Installation, rental and services 114,298 331,224
24,849,905 19,816,325

Contract balances

Gross trade receivables as at the year-end amounted to TZS 4,793,066,000 (2020: TZS
4,790,331,000)

COST OF SALES 2021 2020
Direct Cost TZS '000 TZS '000
Raw material 3,490,877 1,763,160
Direct labour (Note 12) 1,455,612 1,427,265
Transport costs 3,896,944 4,251,133
Depreciations of assets involved in the production 1,937,380 1,780,494
Overheads 2,979,128 1,449,934
Electricity and generator 772,363 701,010

14,532,314 11,372,996

The makeup of the direct cost consists of TZS 1,937 million (2020: TZS 1,780 million) which is part
of the total depreciation cost. This depreciation is directly associated with the production.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000

OTHER INCOME
Interest, installation and fixing of plants* 28,999 107,423
Loss on sale of fixed assets - (29,830)
28,999 77,593

* Interest, installation and fixing of the plants is related to interest income received from fixed
deposits as well as other ad-hoc services provided to customers.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Audit fees 140,156 65,871
Legal and professional fees 328,181 110,362
Depreciation 137,008 - 101,938
Amortisation 74,397 1,150
Staff cost (Note 12) 2,813,345 2,465,209
Bank charges 65,531 985,149
Administration cost 1,318,777 68,269

4,877,395 3,797,948

The depreciation cost of TZS 137 million (2020: TZS 102 million) is part of the total depreciation
cost of TZS 2,058 million (2020: TZS 1,880 million) as disclosed on the note 13.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000

FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 14(c)) 11,221 7,464
Interest expense on bank loan (Note 21) 478,267 877,143
Interest expense on bank overdraft 448,080 -
Foreign exchange loss 53,516 31,425
991,084 916,032

STAFF COST

Salaries and wages 2,256,439 2,381,281
Defined benefit contribution expense - NSSF 291,004 287,466
Statutory deductions 123,737 132,331
Medical expenses 243,748 209,673
Gratuity 211,473 278,961
Other staff costs* 1,142,556 602,762
4,268,957 3,892,474
Direct labour 1,455,612 1,427,265
Operating expenses 2,813,345 2,465,209
4,268,958 3,892,474

“Other staff costs consist of costs such as transportation costs, uniforms, trainings, and food that

is provided to all staff without discrimination given to staff.
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14.

TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The plant and machinery installed on industrial property Plot No.41, Nyakato Industrial Area,
Mwanza City and Plot No. 4 Pugu Industrial Area, Dar es Salaam are held as security for the loans
granted by Diamond Trust Bank. The Bank also holds legal mortgage over Company's property
with Title No. 937 MZLR (LO No. 67760) Nyakato area and Title No. 186068/25 (LO No. 282480)
Dar es Salaam. The Aspen 1000 plant with a carrying amount of TZS 2.6 billion has been
reclassified as held for sale following the Company’s decision of replacing it with a new plant.

LEASES

i. Leases as lessee (IFRS 16)

The Company'’s leases relate to land. Further information about leases for which the Company is
a lessee is presented below.

a) Lease liabilities

2021 2020
Lease liability classification TZS '000 TZS '000
Current portion 11,385 189
Non-current portion 59,817 45,486
71 202 45,675
b) Right-of-use assets
2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 400,072 400,072
Initial direct cost 25,690 -
At 31 December 425,762 400,072
Depreciation
At 1 January (74,741) (72,724)
Impact of initial applicable of IFRS 16 - -
Charge for the year (15,896) (2,017)
At 31 December (90,637) (74,741)
Net carrying account 335,125 325,331
c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
2021 2020
Leases under IFRS 16 TZS '000 TZS '000
Interest on lease liabilities 11,221 7,464
Depreciation of right of use assets 15,896 2,017
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

LEASES (CONTINUED)

i. Leases as lessee (IFRS 16) (continued)

d) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
Within operating cash flows (interest on lease liabilities) 11,221 7,464
Within financing cash flows (payment of principal lease liabilities) 163 7,556
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2021 2020
Cost TZS’ 000 TZS' 000
At 1 January 543,493 325,044
Additions - 218,449
31 December 543,493 543,493
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 172,618 171,468
Charge for the year 74,397 1,150
31 December 247,015 172,618
Net carrying amount 296,478 370,875

The intangible asset consists of computer software. The amortisation of intangible asset has been

disclosed under operating expense (Note 10).

INVENTORIES
2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
Raw materials 570,952 1,312,085
Finished goods 1,496,466 576,861
Welding and medical machines equipment 2,054,320 2,691,635
Less: Inventory provision (32,218) (32,218)
4,089,520 4,548,373

In 2021, inventories of TZS 3,490 million (2020: TZS 1,763 million) were recognised as an expense

during the year and included in ‘cost of sales’.
Inventories are not pledged as security.

Movement on the provision for impairment of inventories is as follows:

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

At 1 January 32,218 -
Charge for the year - 32,218
At 31 December 32,218 32,218
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

TZS’ 000 TZS’ 000

Trade receivables 4,793,066 4,790,331
Staff receivables 100,146 102,112
Prepayments 556,029 1,355,178
5,449,241 6,247,621

Expected credit loss (429,381) (429,391)
5,019,850 5,818,230

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 days terms. As at 31
December 2021 trade receivables amounting to TZS 429 million (2020: TZS 429 million) were

impaired and fully provided for.

Movement on the provision for expected credit loss:

2021 2020

TZS’ 000 TZS 000

At 1 January 429,391 460,388
Charge for the year - (30,997)
At 31 December 429,391 429,391

Trade and other receivables comprise of the following amounts denominated in foreign currency

(USD):

2021 2020
TZS’ 000 TZS' 000
Amount is in TZS 166,829 887,381
166,829 887,381

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand 11,548 11,936
Cash at Bank 4,301,354 592 421
4,312,902 604,357

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following

at 31 December:

2021 2020

TZS’ 000 TZS' 000

Cash at banks and on hand 4,312,902 604,357
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) - (3,014,454)
4,312,902 (2,410,097)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following amounts denominated in foreign currency -

2021 2020
TZS’ 000 TZS' 000
(EURO):
Amount is in TZS 334 441
(USD):
Amount is in TZS 14,010 539,824
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In 2019, the Board of Directors committed to a plan to sell an Aspen 1000 plant and replace it with
another new Air Separation Unit (ASU), which is more effective compared to the current and
foreseeable demand in the market.

In line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), management has done
impairment assessment to check whether the value of the asset as shown in the statement of
financial position at reporting date exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount was
determined as fair value less costs to sell based on the available information at reporting date and
was estimated at. TZS 2.76 billion.

The carrying amount of the asset as of 31 December 2021 is TZS 2.67 billion (2020: TZS 2.67
billion), which is approximate to the fair value of the asset less costs to sell. There has been different
potential buyers and the Company is actively marketing the plant and is aggressively looking to
sale the plant at the earliest. It is highly probable that sale of this property will be concluded by end
of 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, the asset meets the conditions for being qualified as held for sale.
SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS 000
Authorized
60 million Ordinary Shares of TZS 100 each 6,000,000 6,000,000
57,505,963 (2020: 57,505,963) Ordinary Shares issued
and fully paid 5,750,596 5,750,596

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and

are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
regarding the Company’s residual assets.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS
(a) DTB loan facility

The Company obtained a term loan facility amounted to TZS14.475 billion from Diamond Trust
Bank for paying off the Absa Bank Tanzania Limited and CRDB Bank PLC loan facility amounted
to TZS7.5 billion at a time of repayment. The loan was secured on 11 August 2021 and is to be
repaid in sixty (60) equal monthly instalments. Interest rate is 12.75%, accrues daily and paid
monthly in arrears.

In additional to that, the Company obtained a term loan facility amounted to TZS 6.975 billion from
Diamond Trust Bank for the purpose of acquiring new Carbondioxide plant and improving the
distribution fleet for CO2. The loan was secured on 11 August 2021 and is to be repaid in sixty (60)

equal monthly instalments. Interest rate is 12.75%, accrues daily and paid monthly in arrears with
a grace period of one year.

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

At 1 January - -

Received during the year 14,475,000 -

As at 31 December 14,475,000 -

Long term portion 11,927,120 -

Current portion 2,547,880 -
Total loan 14,475,000

Interest expense and interest paid for this loan during the year amounted to TZS 194,082,0000
(2020: nil).
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(b) DTB loan facility (Continued)

The Securities for the loans include:

(i) First legal and continuous mortgage charge over the property with Title no. 186068/25, L.O
No. 28248, Plot No.4, Pugu Industrial Area in the name of TOL Gases Limited.

(i) First legal and continuous mortgage charge over the property with Title no. 937 MZLR L.O. -
No.67760, Plot No.41, Industrial Area Nyakato, Mwanza and Title no. 8883, L.O.No.135720
Plot No.43, Industrial Area, Nyakato, Mwanza in the same name of TOL Gases Limited

(iii) First legal and continuous mortgage charge over the property with Title No. 3064
L.O.No.137662 Plot No.1, Kyejo Busokelo Division, Rungwe in the name of TOL Gases
Limited

(iv) First legal and continuous mortgage charge over the property with Title No. 1432 MB YLR,
L.O No.174895, Farm No.1124, llenge Village, Rungwe District in the name of TOL Gases
Limited

(v) Specific Debenture of the Plant and Machinery on properties on Plot No.4, Pugu Industrial
Area in the name of TOL Gases Limited Plot No.4 and 43, Industrial Area, Nyakato Mwanza
in the name of TOL Gases Limited

(vi) Specific Debenture for new Plant for (CO2) to be part financed by the bank in the name of
TOL Gases Limited(To be charged for TZS 17,675,000,000/- plus Interest and Other
Charges)

(vii)  Fixed and Floating Debenture over all current and future assets of TOL gases Limited (To
be charged for TZS 17,675,000,000/- plus Interest and Other charges)

(c) Loan Facility with CRDB Bank Plc and ABSA Bank Limited

The Company had a term loan facility amounted to TZS 5.1 billion from Absa Bank Tanzania
Limited The loan was secured on 9th August 2018 which is repaid in sixty (80) equal monthly
instalments. Interest rate is 14% p.a, accrues daily and paid monthly in arrears.

On 26" September 2019 the Company obtained a term loan facility amounted to TZS 5.52 billion
from CRDB Bank PLC for the purpose of acquiring new ASU plant and improving the distribution
fleet for CO2. The loan is repayable in sixty (60) equal monthly instalments. Interest rate is 14%
p.a, accrues daily and paid monthly in arrears with a grace period of one year.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000

ABSA Bank Limited
At 1 January 2,890,000 3,910,000
Loan repayment (2,890,000) (1,020,000)
- 2,890,000

CRDB Bank Plc

At 1 January 5,354,209 883,987
Loan received during the year - 4,626,185
Interest expense 284 185 877,143
Interest paid (284,185) (884,607)
Principal repayment during the year (5,354,209) (148,499)
As at 31 December - 5,354,209
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Long term portion
Current portion

Total loan

Total long-term loan:
ABSA Bank Limited
CRDB Bank PLC

Total current portion loan:
Absa Bank Limited
CRDB Bank PLC

TAXATION

a) Income tax expense

Current income tax charge
Deferred tax charge

Income tax reported in the statement of profit or loss

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
- 3,806,949

- 1,547,260
5,354,209

- 3,806,949

- 3,806,949

- 2,890,000

- 1,547,260
4,437,260

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000
52,884 959,101
1,130,596 534,707
1,183,480 1,493,808

A reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by Tanzania Corporate tax

for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as follow:

Accounting before income tax
At Tanzania's statutory income tax rate 30% (2020: 30%)

Tax effect of penalty/interest

Effect of prior year deferred tax

Tax effect of disallowed expenses

Other

Tax effect of prior year accounting errors

b) Tax payable

Balance at 1 January

Tax charge for the year
Repayment made
Withholding tax recoverable

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
4,478,111 3,837,939
1,343,433 1,151,382
- 78,678
(192,834) 267,970
18,534 9,978
14,347 -

. (14,200)
1,183,480 1,493,808
867,563 521,700
52,884 959,101
(675,786) (613,238)
(35,685) -
208,976 867,563

Tax assessments have been made up to 2016. The Tax authority has up to five (5) years to make

final assessment.
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TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

c) Deferred Tax

Recognised
At 31 Dec in profit or At 31 Dec
2020 loss 2021
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 2,386,680 1,142,788 3,529,468
Unrealised exchanges gain (119,386) 116,020 (3,366)
Inventory provision (9,665) - (9,665)
Provision for expected credit losses (605) (128,212) (128,817)
2,257,024 1,130,596 3,387,620

Final tax assessments

The normal procedure for agreeing the final income tax liability in Tanzania involves the Company
filing its final income tax returns with the Tanzania Revenue Authority (TRA) followed by TRA

performing its own review of the Company’s submissions and issuing a notice of final income tax
assessment to the Company.

The final income tax assessment as determined by TRA after its review and possible site visits may
differ from the assessments determined by the Company. The tax laws stipulate procedures for the
Company to object and appeal against TRA assessments. It is common that the timeframe from
the Company’s own submission of final annual tax returns and TRA tax assessments may take

several months or years.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Other payables

Accrual expenses

VAT Payables

Withholding Tax Payables

Statutory deduction (PAYE & NSSF)

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
981,990 912,517
382,141 91,466
382,533 183,856
77,106 400,106
80,320 -
211,529 281,982
2,115,619 1,869,927

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 15 to 45 days after date
of invoice. Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

Trade and other payables comprise of the following amounts denominated in foreign currency:

United States Dollars
Sterling Pound (GBP)
Total - Tanzania Shillings

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
707,623 100,407
291,089 95,230
998,712 195,637
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BANK OVERDRAFT

The Company had secured an overdratft facility with DTB Bank of TZS 3.2 billion at an interest rate
of 12.75% per annum accruing daily on an outstanding balance and is charged monthly. The

overdraft is a revolving facility which is automatically renewable each year. Prior year bank
overdraft was with CRDB Bank.

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
Outstanding balance as at 31 December - 3,014,454

CYLINDER DEPOSIT

Cylinder deposits are made up of payments made by customers for use of cylinders to store gas.
The deposit is refundable to customers upon return of the cylinders.

The movements of cylinder deposit accounts during the year was as follows:

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

Balance as at January 459,052 658,281
Deposits made during the year 62,718 132,319
Reallocation (8,050) (324,872)
Refunds made during the year (16,256) (6,676)
497,464 459,052

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to

ordinary shareholders by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
There were no transactions leading to dilutive effect.

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

Net profit attributable to shareholders 3,294,631 2,344,131
Basic earnings per share (TZS) 57.29 40.76
Basic and diluted earnings per share (TZS) 57.29 40.76

The earning per share above is based on weighted average number of ordinary shares amounting
to 57,505,963 as at year end (2020: 57,505,963 shares)
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EMPLOYEES PENSION

The Company operates a defined contribution plan through a pension scheme to which both the
employer and employee contribute. Employees are members of the National Social Security Fund
(NSSF).The employer and the local employee, each contribute 10% to NSSF each month.

During the year, the Company's contribution amounted to:

2021 2020
TZS '000 TZS '000
Total contributions during the year 291,004 287,466

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following are the transactions between the Company and its related parties.

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are described as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, comprising senior management.

Compensation to key management personnel:

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

Short term benefits 1,219,816 1,304,737
Other long-term benefits 155,750 160,546
1,375,566 1,465,283

Directors’ remuneration

The directors are each entitled to the directors’ fees paid annually as follows:

TZS’000
The Chairman of the Board 9,412
Other directors 7,059

The directors are each also entitled to sitting allowance for every meeting of the Board or its
committees as follows:

TZS'000
The Chairman of the Board 800
Other directors 600
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The total remuneration paid to individual directors, which comprised directors’ fees and sitting
allowances were as follows:

2021 2020
TZS'000 TZS'000

Directors
Mr. Michael Shirima 20,879 11,212
Mr. Godfrey Urasa 4,373 8,859
Mr. Simon Mponji 12,459 9,459
Mr. Justin Massawe 10,859 8,459
Mr. Selestine Some 21,116 8,459
Prof Abraham Temu 11,859 7,059
Eng. Joseph Machange 9,459 8,459
Mr. Leonard K. Chacha 600 -
91,604 61,966

Directors’ interest in the shares of the Company

Directors representing shareholders has interest in issued and fully paid up shares of the
Company as shown below:

Name Shares Shares

2021 2020
1 Godfrey Urasa 2,618,030 2,618,030
2 Michael Shirima 1,680,405 1,680,405
3 Joseph C. N. Machange 1,029,584 1,029,584
4  Justine Massawe 400,100 400,100
5 Simon Mponji 44 851 44 851
6 Prof. Abraham K. Temu 10,075 10,075
7 Mr. Leonard K. Chacha 200 200

Payables to related parties

2021 2020

125’000 128’000

Gratuity payables to key management personnel (127,383) (63,726)
Payables to directors (38,107) (73,265)
(165,490) (136,991)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, overdrafts, and
borrowings. The Company does not enter derivative transactions for trading or other purposes.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company'’s operations.
The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and cash
equivalents, which arise directly from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency, credit and
liquidity risks. The Company’s overall risk management programme seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Company'’s financial performance.

58



29.

TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Risk management is carried out by the management on behalf of the Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities
(when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional
currency mostly US dollars, British Pounds and EURO).

The Company manages its foreign exchange risk by forecasting the amount of foreign
currencies they require and hold an equivalent amount in foreign currencies (US dollar and
EURO). As at 31 December 2021, the balances denominated in foreign currencies were as
Shown on the table below:

Balances denominated
in foreign currencies 2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS '000 TZS '000

UsD EUR GBP usD EUR GBP
Cash and bank balances 14,010 334 - 539,824 441 -
Trade and other
receivables 166,829 - - 887,381 - -
Trade and other
payables (265,776) - - (100,407) - (95,230)
Net exposure (84,937) 334 - 1,326,798 441 (95,230)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar
and Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company'’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and monetary liabilities)
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Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity (Continued)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Effect on profit and Effect on equity
loss (net of tax)
TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000
2021
USD (10% movement) (8,494) (5,946)
EUR (10% movement) 33 23
GBP (10% movement) - -
2020
USD (10% movement) 132,680 92,876
EUR (10% movement) 44 31
GBP (10% movement) (9,523) (6,666)

Interest rate risk

In broad terms the interest rate risk is the risk that concerns the sensitivity of the Company’s
financial performance to changes in the interest rates. The Company’s operations are subject
to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities mature or re-price at different times or in differing amounts. Risk management
activities are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels
consistent with the Company’ s business strategies in order to minimise interest risk. The

Company had limited exposure to interest rate risks as at 31 December 2021 since the interest
on outstanding loans is fixed (2020: fixed rates).

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding. The Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding and aggressive collection efforts
in respect of trade debtor's balances. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s
liquidity i.e. cash at bank and in hand (note 18) on the basis of expected cash flows.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. For

borrowing its interest rate is approximate the market rate.

Un-
Carrying discounted Less than More than 1
amount contractual 1 year year
cash flows
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000
31 December 2021
Lease liabilities 71,202 551,819 11,385 540,534
Trade and other
payables 1,746,664 1,746,664 1,746,664 -
Cylinder deposits 497 464 497 464 497 464 -
Bank overdrafts - - - -
Borrowings 14,475,000 19,851,888 2,309,346 17,542 542
16,790,330 22,647,935 4,564,859 18,083,076
31 December 2020
Lease liabilities 45,675 310,231 7,556 302,875
Trade and other
payables 1,187,839 1,187,839 1,187,839 -
Cylinder deposits 459,052 459,052 459,052 -
Bank overdrafts 3,014,454 3,014,454 3,014,454 -
Borrowings 8,244 209 10,443,768 2,636,323 7,807,445
12,951,229 15,415,344 7,305,224 8,110,120
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company
extension of credit to its customers. For risk management reporting purposes, the Company

considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as individual obligator default risk, nature of
customer and sector risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The table
below summaries the maximum credit exposure as at the reporting date.

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

Trade and other receivables (Note 17) 4,793,066 4,790,331
Staff advances (Note 17) 100,146 102,112
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) 4,312,902 604,357
At 31 December 9,206,114 5,496,800

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit
risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in
which customers operate. Details of concentration of revenue are included in note 7.

61



29,

TOL GASES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum
payment period of 30 days for credit customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Company does
not hold any collateral as security.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and contract
assets during the year was as follows:

2021 2020

TZS '000 TZS '000

Opening balance 429,391 460,388
Net re-measurement of loss allowance - (30,997)
Closing balance 429,391 429,391

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of TZS 355 million (2020: TZS 355 million) were
individually (specifically) impaired and provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to customers with disputes since 2011.

In the year 2021 the Company has assessed risk clusters based on type of customer and their

associated probability of default as detailed below; Assessment in 2020 was based on aging
bracket.

Risk cluster Gross  Impairment Net
TZS '000 TZS '000 TZS '000

CO2 Customers 2,025,722 (27,920) 1,997,802

Government Hospitals 1,811,910 (8,494) 1,803,416

Other Customers (Oxygen/DA/Special gases and

WPs) 600,229 (37,772) 562,457

Specific impairment on trade receivables (see

note above) 355,205 (355,205) -

Total 4,793,066 (429,391) 4,363,675

Strategic, Commercial, operational and financial risks

Through its risk management system, the Company identified strategic, commercial, operational
and financial risks that faces the Company and implement strategies to mitigate the impact of
the identified risks. These risks are mitigated by either establishing controls, meeting and
discussing issues with customers, improving service delivery, investing and training of staff.

These risks are well mitigated and have no significant impact to the financial performance of the
Company.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying amounts of cylinder deposits, trade and other payables, and trade and other
receivables approximate or equal to the fair values of assets and liabilities as these are short
term in nature.

For the bank overdraft, the rate imposed on the term will depend on the daily outstanding
balance. The balance at the end of year 2020 equals the fair value in respect of the prevailing
rate on the outstanding balance.

The interest rate per annum on the interest-bearing loan is fixed at 12.75% for the entire loan
period. Changes in inflation rate are minimal in Tanzania. In the current year the inflation
averaged 3.24% (2020:3.29%) Therefore the carrying amount is the best estimation of the fair
value.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES AND ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

The Company defines capital as the total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The Company
manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company aims to maintain capital discipline in
relation to investing activities and may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies,
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity
plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents. Al components of equity are included
in the denominator of the calculation. Please see the table below.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES AND ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2021, the net debt ratio was 36% (2020:36%).

2021 2020
Gross debt TZS'000 TZS'000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 14,475,000 8,244 209
Bank overdrafts - 3,014,454
Trade and other payables 2,115,619 1,869,927
Cylinder deposits 497 464 459,052
Cash and bank balances (4,312,902) (604,357)
Net debt 12,775,181 12,983,285
Equity 24,270,029 22,975,455
Total debt and capital 37,045,210 35,958,740
Debt ratio 34% 36%

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021, which may possibly result
in a loss or gain to the Company or in commitments which it cannot meet, and for which no
provision is considered necessary or only partial provision has been made.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

With the outbreak of third wave, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to affect the country and
businesses. At the time of issuing these financial statements, the directors have assessed it is
impracticable to quantitatively determine and disclose the extent of the possible effects of the
third wave of pandemic on the Company’s operations.

Considering the Company provides essential products such as Oxygen to hospitals, the
directors expect Company’s operations to continue despite the disruption caused by the
pandemic. Demand for medical oxygen could increase as more hospitals will require oxygen.
No significant impairment of current and non-current assets is expected. Also, credit risk is not
expected to increase significantly as debtors will continue paying the amounts due as they will
require products despite the disruptions. The Company might incur additional expenses arising
from changes in work modalities including remote working and essential employees’ isolations,
but it is expected that any incremental expenses will be financed from cash flows from operations
and the available working capital facilities. Otherwise, no additional significant liabilities are
expected to result from the pandemic. The directors are not aware of other events after the
reporting period which require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company does not have reportable segments. All Company's business activities and
operations have not been disaggregated into different segments as such all operating activities,
financial results, forecasts, or plans are not tracked or assessed as different components since

the Company operates from one strategic location. Based on this, there is no separate
segmental reporting.
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FORTHCOMING STANDARDS

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company
does not plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they
become mandatory. The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to
have a significant impact on the Company's finance statements.

Forth Coming standards/amendments Effective date
- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 .
(Amendment to IFRS 16) 1 April 2021
- Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments
to IAS 37) _ 1 January 2022
- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 1 January 2022
- Property Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16) 1 January 2022
- Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS
3) 1 January 2022
- Classification of Liabilites as Current or Non-current
(Amendments to IAS 1) 1 January 2023
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
- Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a
Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2023
- Definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8) 1 January 2023
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and 14 2023
IFRS Practice Statement 2) anuary
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